
SOLIHULL METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Monday 20 February 2023 at 6.00 pm 

 
 

Virtual Webcast meeting 
 

 
 
 

CPH Communities and Leisure 
Decision Session  

 

Public Document Pack



Disclosing Pecuniary Interests - What Must You Do? 

 

 (a) You must complete a declaration of your disclosable pecuniary interests, including those of 
your spouse/civil partner (or someone with whom you are living as such) and send it to the 
Monitoring Officer within 28 days of your election or appointment to the Council. 

(b)  When you attend a meeting of the Council, Cabinet, Scrutiny Board, Committee, Sub-
Committee or Joint Committee etc, and a matter arises in which you have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest, unless you have been granted a dispensation, you must: 

 Declare the interest if you have not already registered it 

 Not participate in any discussion or vote 

 Leave the meeting room until the matter has been dealt with 

 Give written notice of any unregistered interest to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of 
the meeting 

(c) If you are the Leader or a Cabinet Portfolio Holder you may not exercise any of your 
delegated powers as a single member in relation to a matter in which you have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or take any other step except to give written notice of any unregistered interest 
to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of your becoming aware of the interest, or arrange for 
another person or body to deal with the matter. 

 

Disclosable Interest 

 

Description 

Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain by you 
or your partner. 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the Council) 
made or provided within 12 months of your declaration of interests in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your election 
expenses. 

Contracts Any contract between you or your partner (or a firm or body corporate in which you or 
your partner is a partner or a director, or in the securities of which you or your partner 
has a beneficial interest)) and the Council  
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the Council and which gives you 
or your partner a right to occupy the land or receive income. 

Licences Any licence held by you or your partner (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
area of the Council for a month or longer. 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge)— 
(a) the landlord is the Council; and 
(b) the tenant is a body in which you or your partner has a beneficial interest i.e. a firm or 
body corporate in which you or your partner is a partner or a director, or in the securities 
of which you or your partner has a beneficial interest. 

Securities Any beneficial interest held by you or your partner in securities of a body where— 
 
(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of the 
Council; and 
(b) either— 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of 
the total issued share capital of that body; or 
 
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class in which you or your partner has a 
beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that 
class. 

“securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a 
collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets 
Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a 
building society. 



 
  

SOLIHULL METROPOLITAN  
BOROUGH COUNCIL 



 
To: 
Councillors D Howell, A Adeyemo and 
J Hamilton 
 

 
PAUL JOHNSON 
ACTING CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
Council House, Manor Square 
Solihull, West Midlands. B91 3QB 
Tel. 0121-704 6000  
 
Joseph Bright 
Tel: 0121 704 6055 
Email: jbright@solihull.gov.uk 
 
Date Friday 10 February 2023 
 

 
CPH COMMUNITIES AND LEISURE DECISION SESSION - Monday 20 

February 2023 
 

AGENDA 
 

1.  APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTIONS  
 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS  
 

To receive notification of any declarations of pecuniary and /or conflict of 
interests from Members. 
 

3.  QUESTIONS AND DEPUTATIONS  
 

To answer questions and hear deputations, if any, asked by any resident of the 
Borough pursuant to Standing Orders. 
 

4.  REVENUE AND CAPITAL MONITORING 2022/23 AS AT 31ST DECEMBER 
2022 (Pages 5 - 12) 
 

This report is to update the Cabinet Member on how the Portfolio is performing 
against the approved 2022/23 – 2024/25 Medium Term Financial Strategy 
(MTFS) in the current financial year alongside setting out any new challenges 
that are emerging for the revised MTFS for 2023/24 – 2025/26.  

To inform the Cabinet Member of the Portfolio’s latest forecast financial 
position as at the 31st December 2022 against Revenue and Capital budgets 
as summarised below and detailed in Appendix A.  

To inform the Cabinet Member of the Portfolio’s progress against the latest 3-
year savings targets in the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 
Summarised below and detailed in Appendix A.  

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Meeting date: 
 
Report to: 
 
Report title:  
 
 
Report from: 
 
 
Report author/lead 
contact officer:   

 20th February 2023 
 
Communities and Leisure 
 
REVENUE AND CAPITAL MONITORING 2022/23 AS AT 31st 
December 2022  
 
Director of Economy and Infrastructure and Director of Resources 
and Deputy Chief Executive  
 
Sean Castree – Senior Accountant 
sean.castree@solihull.gov.uk

 
Wards affected:  

☒ All Wards | ☐ Bickenhill | ☐ Blythe | ☐ Castle Bromwich | ☐ Chelmsley Wood | 

☐ Dorridge/Hockley Heath | ☐ Elmdon | ☐ Kingshurst/Fordbridge | ☐ Knowle | 

☐ Lyndon | ☐ Meriden | ☐ Olton | ☐ Shirley East | ☐ Shirley South | 

☐ Shirley West | ☐ Silhill | ☐ Smith’s Wood | ☐ St Alphege 

 

 
Public/private 
report: 
 

Public 

Exempt by virtue 
of paragraph:  
 

N/A 

 
1. Executive Summary 

1.1 This report is to update the Cabinet Member on how the Portfolio is performing 
against the approved 2022/23 – 2024/25 Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) in 
the current financial year alongside setting out any new challenges that are emerging 
for the revised MTFS for 2023/24 – 2025/26. 

1.2 To inform the Cabinet Member of the Portfolio’s latest forecast financial position as at 
the 31st December 2022 against Revenue and Capital budgets as summarised below 
and detailed in Appendix A. 

1.3 To inform the Cabinet Member of the Portfolio’s progress against the latest 3-year 
savings targets in the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) Summarised below 
and detailed in Appendix A. 

 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4

file:///C:/Users/sean.castree/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/M3F2SJPO/sean.castree@solihull.gov.uk%0c
file:///C:/Users/sean.castree/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/M3F2SJPO/sean.castree@solihull.gov.uk%0c
file:///C:/Users/sean.castree/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/M3F2SJPO/sean.castree@solihull.gov.uk%0c


2. Decision(s) Recommended 

2.1 Consider and endorse the 2022/23 revenue and capital financial monitoring forecast 
as at 31st December 2022. 
 

2.2 Consider the Portfolio’s progress against the latest 3 year savings targets in the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) as at 31st December 2022. 
 

 

 

Page 6



Report Title: REVENUE AND CAPITAL MONITORING 2022/23 AS AT 31st 
December 2022 

 
3. Matters for Consideration  

3.1 Throughout the financial year, information will be provided on a quarterly basis to the 
Cabinet Portfolio Holder and Full Cabinet.  

3.2 Full Council agreed a balanced budget in February 2022 for the three years from 
2022/23 to 2024/25. Officers have been working on the new MTFS for 2023/24 to 
2025/26. We have followed the established process of taking updates through the 
Member led Budget Strategy Group followed by an all-Members’ Seminar between 
October and December 2022. There has also been an additional Budget Strategy 
Group meeting on 16 January 2023.  

3.3 The budget proposals were then presented to Scrutiny Boards in January and the 
updated MTFS is presented to Cabinet elsewhere on this agenda. Following this, the 
MTFS will be presented to Full Council in early 2023 alongside Cabinet’s budget and 
council tax recommendations for 2023/24. The report elsewhere on this agenda 
covers the updated MTFS along with the assumptions made, decisions recommended 
and the overall position for 2023/24 to 2025/26. 

Revenue Budget 2022/23 

3.4 The latest approved revenue budget for the portfolio is £7.061million. The forecast 
outturn expenditure for this year is £6.610million giving an overall favourable variance 
of £451,000. This includes an adverse variance in respect of Covid-19 of £98,000. 
Covid-19 Funding has now all been committed, and any further pressures are being 
managed within individual Portfolios. Explanations can be found in Appendix A 
 

3.5 The forecast variance for this portfolio should be considered in the context of the 
overall position for the Economy and Infrastructure Directorate and the Public Health 
Directorate. 

3.6 In February 2022 as part of the MTFS update report at Period 9, Cabinet approved the 
creation of a general Economy and Infrastructure Directorate General Contingency 
reserve to manage future year adverse variances where specific reserves are not 
held. This was in recognition of the risks and pressures which can arise within these 
portfolios due to factors outside the Council's control. 

3.7 The Economy and Infrastructure directorate is currently forecasting a balanced 
position after the use of £1.667million Covid Emergency Grant and £265,000 from the 
Economy and Infrastructure General Contingency reserve. This would leave a 
remaining balance of £1.281million in the reserve to mitigate risks in future years. 

3.8 The Leisure Division budget within the Public Health Directorate, included provision 
for the forecast loss of Leisure centre concession fee income to be met from other 
unallocated leisure revenue resources and reserves in 2022/23. The loss of the 
concession fee income resulted from a change in contract terms triggered as a result 
of the pandemic, which transferred the net annual financial operating risk to the 
Council, until revised operating terms can be agreed between the parties. Due to the 
increase in utility costs and other inflationary pressures, there is a forecast additional 

Page 7



pressure of £370,000 in 2022/23 which will be offset by the use of additional Leisure 
reserves. Other operating savings across the service, including salary savings due to 
temporary vacancies, total £85,000 and there is a delay to some activities linked to the 
Commonwealth Games reducing spend by £75,000 giving a net additional use of 
Leisure reserves in 2022/23 of £210,000.   

Capital Budget 2022/23 

3.9 The latest approved capital programme for this portfolio is £602,000. The forecast 
outturn expenditure for the year is an adverse variance of £272,000 due to additional 
costs for the Tudor Grange pitch replacement due to unexpected additional costs in 
relation to provision of the subbase and drainage. £16,000 of the variance will be met 
from the use of additional leisure revenue reserves and the balance from Property 
Services reserves, held within the Resources and Delivery Value Portfolio, and set 
aside from annual Leisure maintenance contributions.   

 

Budget Strategy Savings 2022/23 to 2024/25 

3.10 For 2022/23 the total savings target is £18,000 which is rated green. 

3.11 For 2023/24 there are no savings for this portfolio. 

3.12 For 2024/25 there are no savings for this portfolio. 

 

Emerging pressures to be managed 

3.13 Energy price rises are impacting the financial operating position of the leisure centres. 
With electricity having increased from October 2022 and further gas increases from 
April 2023, the energy cost pressure is forecast at £811,000 for 2023/24 above the 
forecast cost provided in the existing MTFS budget. There are also on-going impacts 
of the pandemic. The Public Health Directorate are in talks with the leisure centre 
provider to agree a new financial operating model, as permitted under the deed of 
variation to the contract and are working towards implementation of the new model 
from April 2023 and in subsequent years. Energy prices and the on-going impact of 
the pandemic on the operation of leisure centre contracts is a nationally reported 
pressure. Pressures in relation to leisure centres have been reported through the 
Budget Strategy review. 

4. What options have been considered and what is the evidence telling us about 
them? 

4.1 N/A 

5. Reasons for recommending preferred option 

5.1 N/A 

Page 8



6. Implications and Considerations 

6.1 State how the proposals in this report contribute to the priorities in the Council Plan: 

Priority: Contribution: 

People and Communities: 

1. Improving outcomes for children and 
young people in Solihull. 

2. Good quality, responsive, and dignified 
care and support for Adults in Solihull 
when they need it. 

3. Take action to improve life chances and 
health outcomes in our most 
disadvantaged communities. 

4. Enable communities to thrive. 

People and communities are an important 
area of consideration for the services within 
this portfolio, with all possible efforts being 
made to ensure that services are delivered 
and policies are determined in a manner 
that is equitable to all, allowing communities 
to thrive and enhancing the life chances of 
disadvantaged communities. There are no 
new implications from this report. 

Economy: 

5. Develop and promote the borough’s 
economy, with a focus on revitalising 
our town and local centres. 

6. Maximising the opportunities of UK 
Central and HS2. 

7. Increase the supply of affordable and 
social housing that is environmentally 
sustainable. 

The economy is a key area of consideration 
for the services within this portfolio with 
increasing the supply of housing especially 
affordable and social housing being one of 
the key objectives. There are no new 
implications from this report. 

Environment: 

8. Enhance our natural environment, 
improve air quality and reduce net 
carbon emissions. 

The environment is a key area of 
consideration for the services within this 
portfolio with enhancing the natural 
environment, improving air quality and 
reducing carbon emissions all being key 
objectives.  There are no new implications 
from this report. 

9. Promote employee wellbeing No new contribution to this priority. 

6.2 Consultation and Scrutiny: 

None 

6.3 Financial implications: 

6.3.1 Financial monitoring is undertaken throughout the year by individual budget 
managers. Key income and expenditure risk areas are also monitored monthly by the 
Finance Team. Any significant risks identified are reported to both DLT (Directorate 
Leadership Team) and CLT (Corporate Leadership Team) to ensure that net 
expenditure is managed within approved budgets. ARTOP (Aligning Resources To 
Our Priorities Board) meet quarterly to oversee the delivery of the MTFS. 

Page 9

https://www.solihull.gov.uk/About-the-Council/The-Council-plan


6.4 Legal implications: 

None 

6.5 Risk implications, including Risk Appetite: 

6.5.1 The budget monitoring report takes account of known forecast variances. In addition, 
there may be pressures which are currently being monitored and managed by budget 
managers that could affect the final outturn position for 2022/23. 

6.5.2 As mentioned in Section 3 of this report there are a number of substantial financial 
risks that the authority is facing as a result of external economic conditions which will 
be considered as part of the Council’s Budget Setting Process. 

6.5.3 The Corporate risk relating to the delivery of the MTFS is now at a net level 9.  The 
new MTFS that will be presented to Full Council in February 2023 will need to reduce 
this risk to at least a net level 8. 

6.5.4 Covid-19 Funding has now all been committed, and any further pressures will need to 
be managed within individual Portfolios. 

6.6 Equality implications: 

None 

6.7 Linkages to our work with the West Midlands Combined Authority (WMCA), Local 
Enterprise Partnership or the Birmingham & Solihull Integrated Care System (ICS): 

None 

7. List of appendices referred to 

7.1 Appendix A – Q3 22-23 Rev & Cap Monitoring Report 

8. Background papers used to compile this report 

N/A 

9. List of Other Relevant Documents 

N/A 

Page 10



Communities and Leisure Quarter 3 2022/23 Financial Position

Economy and Infrastructure Directorate Position

1. 2022/23 Revenue Position Current Forecast - £451,000 Favourable Variance

2. Explanations for significant Revenue Variances

Service Area
Budget
£000s

Forecast
£000s

Total 
Forecast 
Variance

£000s
Directorate Management and Support 
Communities and Leisure

852 728 (123)

Arts and Culture 243 378 135

Crime and Disorder Reduction and 
Neighbourhood Activity Programme

282 269 (13)

Customer Services 1,785 1,738 (46)

Economic Development 582 509 (73)

Libraries 2,482 2,295 (187)

Partnership and Sustainable Working 511 367 (144)

Emergency Planning 198 198 0

Food Poverty 0 0 0

Domestic Violence 18 18 0

Refugees and Asylum Seekers 0 0 0

Leisure Services 110 110 0

Substance Misuse (Drugs and Alcohol) 0 0 0

Total 7,061 6,610 (451)

Adverse variance due to the continued effects of the Covid-19 pandemic on income from the Core theatre and café with reduced visitor numbers. The service is also 
experiencing a significant impact from rising costs in relation to food and beverage supplies.

Portion of Economy and Infrastructure Directorate Management variance relating to this portfolio. The favourable variance is mainly due to contribution from reserves to 
balance the overall directorate position, and a saving on salary costs due to a secondment.

Comments

Budget is net of £2.580m grant funding.

Budget is net of £709,000 grant funding.

This includes the Holiday Activity and Food Programme and the Household Support Fund which are both fully grant funded.

Additional salary costs of £29,000 to be met from Emergency Planning reserves. 

Favourable variance from additional income from staff time chargeable to grant programmes with a timing delay to recruit additional staff to deliver this activity.

Favourable salary variance mainly due to a high level of vacancies following the re-opening of the service after the Covid-19 pandemic.

Favourable salary variance due to vacancies in the process of being filled following a restructure of the Sustainable Growth service.

This includes support to refugees from Syria, Afghanistan, Hong Kong and Ukraine which are all fully grant funded.

Forecast pressure of £370,000 in relation to leisure Centres, mainly due to utility price increases. Talks are continuing with the provider, Everyone Active, with a view to 
agreeing a new financial model from  April 2023. 
(£75,000) surplus on Commonwealth Games due to delayed Activities, to be made available in 2023/24 (subject to approval).
Net surplus of (£85,000) across other Solihull Active service including savings due to temporary vacancies.
£210,000 net additional use of leisure reserves. 

The context of this Cabinet portfolio position is taken into account with the whole of the Economy and Infrastructure Directorate which is currently forecasting a balanced position after the use of £1.667million Covid Emergency Grant and £265,000 from the Economy 
and Infrastructure General Contingency reserve.

Favourable variance due to additional income for new areas of work including energy rebate scheme.

Favourable variance mainly due to receiving a grant to fund the antisocial behaviour contract.

852
243 282

1,785

582

2,482

511

198
0 18 0 110 0

728 378 269

1,738

509

2,295

367
198

0 18 0 110 0

(123)

135

(13) (46) (73) (187) (144)

0 0 0 0 0 0

(2,000)

(1,500)

(1,000)

(500)

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

Directorate
Management and

Support
Communities and

Leisure

Arts and Culture Crime and Disorder
Reduction and
Neighbourhood

Activity Programme

Customer Services Economic
Development

Libraries Partnership and
Sustainable Working

Emergency Planning Food Poverty Domestic Violence Refugees and
Asylum Seekers

Leisure Services Substance Misuse
(Drugs and Alcohol)

£
0

00

Quarter 3 2022/23 Revenue Forecast by Service Area £000s Budget
£000s

Forecast
£000s

Total Forecast Variance
£000s

P
age 11



3. 2022/23 Capital Position

Schemes
Budget         Forecast Variance

£000s £000s £000s
LIBRARY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 
IMPLEMENTATION

7 7 0

TG PITCH REPLACEMENT 595 867 272

Total 602 874 272

4. 3 Year Savings Targets £000s

Description of Target
2022/23
£000s

2023/24
£000s

2024/25
£000s Comments

Review of back office functions across the 
directorate

(18)

Total (18) 0 0

5.Reserves

Comments

Forecast Remaining 
Balance 

Remaining costs of LMS implementation (CIVICA, SPYDUS and an estimate for the integration of the CARM system).

Balance as at 31st March 
2022

Forecast Balance at the 
end of 2024/25

Forecast 
(contribution) /use 
beyond 2024/25                     2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Proposed as part of 
2025/26 MTFS

2022/23 funding is built in to permanently offset this saving.

(1,313)

Planned / Forecast  (contribution)/use

£000's
380 385

There is an additional cost of £272,000 above budget due mainly to issues identified with the quality and suitability of the subbase identified after work commenced, requiring 
a new drainage system and stone base. Additional cost is being met £16,000 by Leisure and balance from Property Services from annual management contributions.

£000's£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
(1,288) (25)Reserve Balance (5,088) 1,736 1,683

Green
-100%

Savings Targets - RAG Rating

P
age 12


	Agenda
	4 REVENUE AND CAPITAL MONITORING 2022/23 AS AT 31st December 2022
	Appendix A - Rev  Cap Financial Monitoring CL Q3 2022-23.pdf


